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PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 17" Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on
Thursday, the 28" Day of September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. at “KNR House, Plot No. 114, Phase — |, Kavuri Hills,
Hyderabad — 500033 at to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To Receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 along with the
report of the Directors and Auditors thereon

2. To consider and appoint a Director in place of Mr. K Narsimha Reddy (DIN:00382412), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and re-appoint M/s M K Dandeker & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company.

“RESOLVED THAT THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made thereunder and based on the recommendations of the audit
Committee and board of directors of the Company, M/s M K Dandeker & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration N0.000679S) be and are hereby reappointed as statutory auditors of the Company, to hold office for a
second term of five consecutive years (i.e, from Fy 2023-24 to 2027-28) from the conclusion of 17th AGM till
conclusion of the 22nd AGM, at a remuneration of Rs. 4.25 lakhs per annum exclusive of applicable taxes and out of
pocket expenses.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To appoint Mrs. G Chandra Rekha (DIN: 08464587) as Independent Director of the Company.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV and applicable rules made thereunder, Mrs.G Chandra Rekha (DIN:
08464587) who was appointed as Additional director of the Company under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
with effect from August 8, 2023 and who holds office until the date of the Annual General Meeting pursuant and in
respect of whom the Company has received notice in writing from member under Section 160 of the Act, proposing
her candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as Independent Director of the
Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years commencing from 08" August 2023 and shall not be liable to retire
by rotation.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any of the Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to file relevant forms with the Registrar of Companies, Telangana and do all other acts, deeds and things as
may be necessary in connection with the above appointment.”

5. Toappoint Mrs. P Subbaratnamma (DIN: 09432984) as Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV and applicable rules made thereunder, Mrs.P Subbaratnamma (DIN:
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09432984) who was appointed as Additional director of the Company under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
with effect from August 8, 2023 and who holds office until the date of the Annual General Meeting pursuant and in
respect of whom the Company has received notice in writing from member under Section 160 of the Act, proposing
her candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as Independent Director of the
Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years commencing from 08" August 2023 and shall not be liable to retire
by rotation.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any of the Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to file relevant forms with the Registrar of Companies, Telangana and do all other acts, deeds and things as
may be necessary in connection with the above appointment.”

To amend the Articles of Association of the Company.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and rule made thereunder (including any statutory modifications thereto for the time being in force) read with
SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2023 dated 02™ February 2023, consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded to amend the Articles of Association as below:

i) The following Article 92(3) be inserted after the existing Article 92(2)

92(3) : Notwithstanding anything contained in the Articles, the Board shall have power, on receipt of
nomination from the Debenture Trustee to appoint a Nominee Director on the Board of the Company, in the
following circumstances:

a) two consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the debenture holders; or
b) default in creation of security for debentures; or
c) default in redemption of debentures.

Such nominee director shall not be liable to retire by rotation and shall not be required to hold qualification
shares.

The debenture trustee may have the right to withdraw nomination of such nominee director so appointed and also
in case of death/resignation/casual vacancy for any reasons. Such appointment or removal shall be made in
writing to the Company.”

i) The Common seal clause shall be deleted from the following articles:
Existing Article and | Existing Articles Article after amendment | Deleted content from the
heading existing article
Avrticle 2 (f) "Seal" means the | Deleted "Seal means the
The seal common seal of the common seal of the

Company. Company.

Avrticle 6 (2) Every certificate shall be | Every certificate shall | shall be under the seal
Certificate to bear seal under the seal and shall | specify the shares to

specify the shares to | which it relates and the
which it relates and the | amount paid-up thereon
amount paid-up thereon

Article 106 106 (1) The Board shall | Deleted 106 (1) The Board shall
The seal, its custody and | provide for the safe provide for the safe
use, affixation of seal custody of the seal. custody of the seal.
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(2) The seal of the
Company shall not be
affixed to any deed or
instrument except by the
authority of a resolution
of the Board or of a
Committee of the Board
authorised by it in that
behalf, and except in the
presence of a Director or
Manager or the Secretary
or such other person as
the Board / Committee
may appoint for the
purpose who shall sign
every instrument to which
the seal of the Company
is so affixed in his / her

presence provided
nevertheless, that any
instrument bearing the

seal of the Company and
issued  for  valuable
consideration shall  be
binding on the Company
notwithstanding any
irregularity of the
authority to issue the
same.

(2) The seal of the
Company shall not be
affixed to any deed or
instrument except by the
authority of a resolution
of the Board or of a
Committee of the Board
authorised by it in that
behalf, and except in the
presence of a Director or
Manager or the
Secretary or such other
person as the Board /
Committee may appoint
for the purpose who shall
sign every instrument to
which the seal of the
Company is so affixed in
his / her presence
provided  nevertheless,
that any instrument
bearing the seal of the
Company and issued for
valuable  consideration
shall be binding on the
Company
notwithstanding any
irregularity of  the
authority to issue the
same.

Article 115
Waiver of dividends

The waiver in whole or in
part of any dividend on
any share by any
document (whether or not
under seal) shall be
effective only if such
document is signed by the
member (or the person
entitled to the share in
consequence of the death
or bankruptcy of the
holder) and delivered to
the Company and if or to
the extent that the same is
accepted as such or acted
upon by the Board.

The waiver in whole or
in part of any dividend
on any share by any
document  shall  be
effective only if such
document is signed by
the member (or the
person entitled to the
share in consequence of
the death or bankruptcy
of the holder) and
delivered to the
Company and if or to the
extent that the same is
accepted as such or acted
upon by the Board.

(whether or not under
seal)

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. K Narsimha Reddy, Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to file
requisite forms with the Registrar of Companies, Telangana, and do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required in

this regard.”
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For and on behalf of the Board of
Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad K Narsimha Reddy
Date: 08.08.2023 Director
DIN: 00382412
Notes:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the

proxy need not be a member. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the company not later than
forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must
be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not
act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty in number and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a
proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory Statements are open for
inspection by the Members at the Company’s Registered Office on all working days of the Company, during
business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant to Section
113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant Board
Resolution together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and
vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early
date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the meeting.
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Explanatory Statement

[Pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013]

Item No.3:

M/s M K Dandeker & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 12"
Annual General Meeting held on 15" September 2018 for a period of 5 years ie., upto conclusion of 17th AGM to be held
in the year 2023. Consequently, M/s M K Dandeker & Co., Chartered Accountants, complete their first term of five
consecutive years as the statutory auditors of the Company at the conclusion of 17th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Pursuant to section 139(2) of the Act, the Company can appoint an auditors firm for a second term of five consecutive
years. M/s M K Dandeker & Co., Chartered Accountants have consented to the said re-appointment and confirmed that
their re-appointment, if approved, would be within the limits specified under Section 141(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.
They have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be reappointed as statutory auditors in terms of the
provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, whether
financially or otherwise in the Resolution as set out at Item no. 3.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommends the resolution set forth in item no.3
of the notice for approval of the members.

Item No.4 & 5: The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
appointed Mrs. G Chandra Rekha and Mrs. P Subbarathnamma as additional directors of the Company w.e.f.
08" August 2023. In accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. G
Chandra Rekha and Mrs. P Subbarathnamma shall hold office up to the date of ensuing annual general meeting
and is eligible to appointed as independent directors of the Company for a term upto 5 years, not liable to retire
by rotation. The Company has received notice from a member proposing their candidature for the office of the
Director of the Company. Brief profile of the Directors as required under the SS-2 is annexed to the notice of
AGM.

The Company has received from Mrs. G Chandra Rekha and Mrs. P Subbarathnamma

a) Consent to act as Directors of the Company in Form DIR-2

b) Intimation in form DIR-8 to the effect that they are not disqualified under the provisions of Section
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013

c) Declarations of independence under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Further, they have also
confirmed that they are in compliance with rule 6(1) and (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
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of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration with the data bank of Independent Directors maintained
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

The draft letter of appointment of Mrs. G Chandra Rekha and Mrs. P Subbarathnamma as Independent
Directors setting out the terms and conditions is available for inspection by the members through electronic
mode upto closure of AGM on request by sending mail to cs@knrcl.com.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out at items 4&5 for the consideration and approval of the
members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, other than Mrs. G
Chandra Rekha and Mrs. P Subbarathnamma, is concerned or interested in the resolution in any manner.

Item No. 6:

SEBI vide notification fated 2" February 2023, amended the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021, wherein it is mandated that the Articles of Association of Issuer of debt securities
shall contain a clause authorizing the Board of Directors of such issuer company to appoint a person nominated
by the Debenture Trustee as Nominee Director in the Board.

Further, in case of issuer companies whose debt securities are already listed on the date of the SEBI notification
i.e, February 2, 2023 does not contain a provision for appointing a Nominee Director by Debenture Trustee,
then such issuer companies shall amend their Articles of Association on or before September 30, 2023.

Members are further requested to note that the Articles of Association of the Company does not contain the
aforementioned provision with respect to appointment of Nominee Director, nominated by the Debenture
Trustee.

Further, in order to align the provisions of Articles of Association vis-a-vis, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and remove certain inconsistencies, it is proposed to alter the Articles by altering/deleting the
Common Seal clauses wherever appears in the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 8" August 2023, subject to the approval by the members of the
Company by way of special resolution, approved by the alteration of Articles of Association of the Company
for inclusion of Article pertaining to appointment of nominee Director nominated by the Debenture Trustee and
deletion of common seal clauses wherever appear in the Articles of Association.
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The draft altered Articles of Association of the Company is available for inspection by the members through
electronic mode till the date of AGM , by sending a request to the Company’s email id cs@knrcl.com.

None of the Directors, KMPs and their relatives are concerned or interested, in the resolution as set out in ltem
No. 6 of the notice.

For and on behalf of the Board of

Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Sd/-

K Narsimha Reddy

Director

(DIN:00382412)
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Information in respect of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment as required under the Secretarial

Standards on General Meetings issued by the ICSI.

Name & Age Mr. K Narsimha Reddy, Mrs. G Chandra Rekha, Mrs P Subbarathnamma
76 years 49 years 42 Years
Qualification Bachelor’s Degree B.Com., Basic BA
Computers,
Medical
Terminology,
Hospital Billing
and Coding
Experience (including He has over 50 years of | Worked as Having 18 years’ experience
expertise in specific experience in the roads and | billingand in secretarial and company
functional area)/Brief infrastructure sector coding specialist law matters.
Resume and

administrator in
health sector

Terms and Conditions of
Appointment /
Reappointment

Appointment as non-executive
Director

Appointment as non-
executive  Independent
Director for a period of 5
years, not liable to retire

Appointment as non-executive
Independent Director for a
period of 5 years, not liable to

retire by rotation

by rotation.
Details of Remuneration | Nil Nil Nil
sought to be paid
Remuneration last | Nil NA NA
drawn
Date of first April 20, 2006 08.08.2023 08.08.2023
appointment on the
Board
Shareholding in the 1 Nil Nil

Company as on March
31, 2023

(Nominee of KNR Constructions
Limited)

Relationship with other
Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel

Not related to any Director/Key
Managerial Personnel

Not related to any
Director/Key Managerial
Personnel

Not related to any
Director/Key Managerial
Personnel

Number of meetings of | 6 NA NA
the Board attended

during the year (2022-

23)

Directorships of other 10 (including the directorshipin | 1 1
Boards as on March 31, | the Company)

2023

Membership / Nil 3 Nil

Chairmanship of
Committees of other
Boards as on March 31,
2023
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id Folio No /Client ID DP ID
I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint
Name : E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature , or failing him

Name : E-mail 1d:

Address:

Signature , or failing him

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
company, to be held on Thursday, the 28" September, 2023 at 11.00 am at “KNR House, Plot No. 114, Phase — I, Kavuri
Hills, Hyderabad — 500033 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

Sl Resolution(S) Vote
No. For Against
1. Adoption of statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheet, report of Director’s and Auditor’s

for the financial year 31st March, 2023
2. Re-appointment of Mr. K Narsimha Reddy , who retires by rotation and offers himself for

re-appointment.
3 Re-appointment of M/s M K Dandeker & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory

Auditors of the Company
4 Appointment of Mrs. G Chandra Rekha as Independent Director of the Company.
5 Appointment of Mrs. P Subbarathnamma as Independent Director of the Company
6 Amendment of Articles of Association of Company
* Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.

Affix Revenue

Signed this day of 2023 Stamps
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder Signature of the shareholder across Revenue Stamp
Note:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the

Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2) The proxy need not be a member of the company
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
17th Annual General Meeting on 28™ September 2023

Full name of the members attending
(In block capitals)

Ledger Folio No. /Client ID No. No. of shares held:

Name of Proxy

(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member)

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES
LIMITED, at “KNR House, Plot No. 114, Phase — I, Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad — 500033 to be held on Thursday the 28%"
September, 2023.

(Member’s /Proxy’s Signature)
Note:

1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since further copies will not be
available.

2) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than FORTY-EIGHT
HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.

3) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.
4) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be accepted
to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand

in the Register of Members.

5) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person and voting
at the meeting.
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PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
To,
The Members,
PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

Your Directors are happy to present their 17" Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company and the Financial Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2023.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results for the year ended 31 March, 2023 are summarized below:

(in Lacs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Total Revenue 4759.67 7739.64
Total Expenditure 1713.42 923.13
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax 3046.25 6816.52
Less: Depreciation 18.68 9.86
Less: Interest / Finance Cost 3016.56 3550.89
Profit for the year before Taxes 11.01 3255.76
Less: Provision for tax - -
Profit after Taxes 11.01 3255.76
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 11.01 3255.76

2. COMPANY’S AFFAIRS & FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Company is in operation stage and during the year The Company received 25th and 26th Annuity
in full without any deductions and penalties. During the year NHAI has notified that GST will be
applicable on the Annuities and received the same from NHAI. All the Statutory dues have been cleared
on due dates. 2 Major Maintenance were completed till date and 3rd Major Maintenance will be
commenced from FY 2025-26.

3. DIVIDEND
Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023.

4. AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

Your directors have decided not to make any transfer to reserves.

5. TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The Company does not have any unclaimed dividends which are due for remittance into Investor
Education and Protection Fund.
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6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relates and the date of this
report.

8. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

During the year under review there has been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

9. SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company does not have any subsidiaries/joint ventures/Associate
Companies.

10. CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE
a) Equity Share Capital

As on the date of this report, the Authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 30,00,00,000 (Rupees
Thirty Crores only) divided into 3,00,00,000 (Thirty Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and Paid-
Up Share Capital Rs. 23,82,38,040/- divided into 2,38,23,804 equity shares of Rs.10/- each
respectively.

b) Non-Convertible Debentures

Your Company has issued non-convertible debentures aggregating to Rs. 400 crores and the
outstanding balance as on 31% March 2023 is Rs. 218 Crores and the Company is classified as Large
Corporate Entity pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26,
2018.

Issue of shares:

During the year under review, the Company has not
a) Bought back any of its securities
b) Issued Bonus shares
c) Issued Employee Options scheme
d) Issued Sweat Equity shares
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11. CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES

The credit rating assigned by Care Edge Ratings to the NCDs and Long term bank facilities of the
Company is “CARE AA+ Stable reaffirmed” vide their letter dated August 30, 2022.

12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As on the date of report, your company’s Board comprises of the following Directors

S.No Name of the Director Designation

1. Mr.K Narsimha Reddy Director

2. Mr. B Sudashander Reddy Director (upto 09.08.2022)

3. Ms. Kavita Shirvaikar Non-Executive Director

4 Mr. Rahul Agarwal Non_Executive Director
(w.e.f. 09.08.2022)

6. Mrs.B S Radhika Independent Director
(resigned w.e.f. 08.08.2023)

7. Mrs. D Venkata Padma Independent Director
(Resigned w.e.f 08.08.2023)

8. Mrs.G Chandra Rekha Additional Director
(appointed w.e.f. 08.08.2023)

9. Mrs. P Subbarathnamma Additional Director
(appointed w.e.f 08.08.2023)

Key Managerial Personnel

As on the date of report, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per the
provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. V Narasimha Ramana - CEO
Shri S Vaikuntanathan - CFO
Shri Mohit Agarwal - Company Secretary

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial personnel
The below are the changes in Board of Directors of the Company, as on the date of report.

- Appointment of Mr. Rahul Agarwal as Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f.
09.08.2022

- Cessation of Mr. B S Reddy as Director of the Company w.e.f 28.09.2022 as he had expressed
his unwillingness to be re-appointed as Director.

- Resignation of Mrs. D Venkata Padma as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.
08.08.2023

- Resignation of Mrs. B S Radhika as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 08.08.2023.

- Appointment of Mrs. G Chandra Rekha as Additional Director (Non-executive & Independent)
of the Company w.e.f. 08.08.2023.

- Appointment of Mrs. P Subbarathnamma as Additional Director (Non-executive &
Independent) of the Company w.e.f. 08.08.2023.
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Independent Directors

As on the date of this report, the Company has two Independent Directors namely Mrs. G Chandra
Rekha and Mrs. P Subbarathnamma who have been appointed as Additional Directors w.e.f. 08.08.2023
and seek appointment as Independent Directors in the ensuing annual general meeting.

During the year under review, the Company had two Independent Directors namely Mrs. B S Radhika
and Mrs. D Venkata Padma who have resigned w.e.f 08.08.2023.

The Company has received necessary declarations from independent directors as required under Section
149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the effect that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are in
compliance with the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors as stipulated under Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors meet separately without the presence of the Executive Directors and
management personnel as required under the provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 to
evaluate the performance of the Chairperson, executive directors and assess the quality and quantity and
timelines of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board. One such meeting
was held on 30" March 2023.

The Independent Directors are also registered with the Independent Directors data bank.

Retirement by rotation of Directors
Mr. K Narsimha Reddy, has expressed his willingness to be re-appointed as Director through retirement
by rotation.

13. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year under review, six (6) board meetings were held on 14" May 2022, 09" August 2022,
30" September 2022, 11" November 2022, 06" February 2023 and 31t March 2023 and adequate
guorum was present at all the meetings.

14. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your company has duly constituted the below committees of the Board as required under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Audit Committee

S.No Name Designation

1 B S Radhika (till Chairman
08.08.2023)

2 D Venkata Padma (till Member
08.08.2023)

3 B S Reddy (till Member
09.08.2022)
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4 Rahul Agarwal (w.e.f. Member
29.09.2022)

5 Mrs. G Chandra Rekha Member
(w.e.f. 08.08.2023)

6 Mrs. P | Chairperson
Subbarathnamma
(w.e.f. 08.08.2023)

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year on 14" May 2022, 09" August 2022,
11" November 2022 and 6™ February 2023.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

S.No Name Designation

1 Daruvuri Venkata Chairman
Padma (till 08.08.2023)

2 B S Radhika (till Member
08.08.2023)

3 G Chandra Rekha | Chairperson
(w.e.f. 08.08.2023)

4 P Subbarathnamma Member
(w.e.f. 08.08.2023)

3. Ms. Kavita Shirvaikar Member

One meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the year on 09" August
2022.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

S.No Name Designation

1 B S Reddy (till Chairman
09.08.2022)

2 Rahul Agarwal (w.e.f. Member
30.09.2022)

2 Daruvuri Venkata | Chairperson
Padma (till 08.08.2023)

3 B S Radhika (till Member
08.08.2023)

4 G Chandra Rekha | Chairperson
(w.e.f. 08.08.2023)

5 P Subbarathnamma Member
(w.e.f. 08.08.2023

One meeting of CSR Committee was held during the year on 06" February 2023.
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has taken into consideration, accepted and acted upon all the recommendations of the Audit
Committee.
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16. POLICY OF DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company has in place appointment and remuneration policy of Directors as required under the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the said policy is annexed as Annexure .

17. BOARD EVALUATION

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, the Board has conducted formal evaluation of
the performance of Directors individually and the Board as a whole during the year under review.

18. COST RECORDS

The company doesn’t fall under the threshold limits specified under the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 to maintain the cost records of the Company.

19. AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors

M/s M K Dandeker & Co., Chartered Accountant, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company at the 12th Annual General Meeting held on 22nd August, 2018 for a period of 5 years ie.,
upto conclusion of 17th AGM to be held in the year 2023. Subsequently, M/s M K Dandeker & Co.,
being eligible, it is proposed to for their re-appointment as statutory auditors of the Company for a
second term of 5 years from the conclusion of 17" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 22™
Annual General Meeting.

There are no qualifications or observations or remarks made by the Auditors in their Report.
No frauds were reported by the Statutory Auditors during the year under report.

Internal Auditors

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, at their meeting held on 08"
August 2023 has re-appointed M/s Raju Poojari and Associates, Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditors of the Company for the FY 2023-24. The Internal Auditors submit their report periodically to
the Audit Committee.

Secretarial Auditors

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s M S Pitroda & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, as
Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the FY 2021-22.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2021-22 is annexed herewith as Annexure Il. The below are
the observations made by the Secretarial Auditors in the secretarial audit report.

Observation Reply by the Directors

During the year under review the Company has
made delay in filing of Statement of Investor
Complaints for the quarter ended 30" June 2022
under SEBI (LODR) 2015, The BSE Limited has
fined the Company for Rs. 16,520/-

There was an inadvertent delay in submission of
statement of Investor Complaints for the quarter
ended 30" June 2022. The Company had paid the
penalty for Rs. 16,520/- to BSE. The
management has taken necessary steps to avoid




PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

20.

21.

such delay in future.

During the year under review The Company has
made delay in filling of Compliance under
Regulation 57(4) and 57(5) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015, and BSE Limited has fined Rs.
23,600/- for Non-compliance of the said
Regulations for the quarter ended March 2022
and June 2022

There was an inadvertent delay in submission of
compliance under Regulations 57(4) and (5) of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter
ended 30" June 2022. The Company had paid the
penalty of Rs. 23,600/- to BSE. The management
has taken necessary steps to avoid such delay in
future.

During the year under review, the Company has
made delay submission of record date intimation
under Regulation 60 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and BSE has levied penalty of
Rs. 1,41,600/-

There was an inadvertent delay in filing of
intimation of record date under Regulation 60 of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the period
31% March 2022 and the Company has paid
penalty of Rs. 1,41,600/- The management has
taken necessary steps to avoid such delay in
future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial

statements.

During the period under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material

weakness in the design or operation was observed.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We, Directors of Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited, state that:

a) in the preparation of Annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Ill to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors' had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgment and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and Profit of the Company for the
year under review;

c) the Directors' had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

d) The Directors' had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31% March 2023 on a going
concern basis.

e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliances with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the period under review, there are no subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures to the Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO WITH
RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 and is set out
as Annexure 111 and forms part of this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are applicable to your Company during the year under
review.

The initiatives undertaken by the Company under CSR during the year 2022-23 is provided in the CSR
Annual Report which is annexed herewith as Annexure 1V.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPOTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) read with Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are
not applicable to the Company. However, all possible efforts are being made to conserve the energy to
the optimum level.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.
There are no earnings in foreign currencies during the year. The details of Foreign Exchange outgo are

as under:
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Amount

(for the year 2022-23)
Agency Fee 22,22,564.40
Interest Payment 1,88,35,112.80
Hedging Expense 1,97,23,399.50
Principal Payment 20,12,50,000.00
Total 24,20,31,076.70
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36.

37.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has in place Risk Management Policy as required under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, to effectively manage risk and address the concerns and challenges.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism to the employees to report genuine
concerns/grievances. The vigil mechanism is presently overseen by the Board. There are no
complaints/grievances received from any Directors or employees of the Company during the year under
review.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company confirms that it is compliance with the applicable secretarial standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY COURTS/REGULATORS/TRIBUNALS

There were no material or significant orders passed by the regulators/courts/tribunals that would impact
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY PROCEEDINGS INITIATED AGAINST THE COMPANY
No Corporate Insolvency proceedings were initiated against the Company under the provisions of
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE
TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS
OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH REASONS THEREOF

Not applicable as there were no instances of one-time settlement with the Banks or financial institutions.
IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE ACTION, FAILURE, IF ANY.

During the year under review, no corporate actions were decided and implemented by the Company.

ANNUAL RETURN
A copy of Annual Return is available in the website of the Company and can be accessed through the
below link:

http://knrcl.com/images/pkhil/annualreports/Annual-Return-2022-23.pdf

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORK
PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.
During the year under review, no sexual harassment cases were reported.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are
not applicable to the Company for the year under report.


http://knrcl.com/images/pkhil/annualreports/Annual-Return-2022-23.pdf
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ANNEXURE 1
PATEL KNR HEAVY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Introduction
Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited (‘the Company’) has adopted this Policy upon the
recommendation of the Board and the said Policy is in compliance with the requirements of Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder (‘the Act”).
This policy shall be applicable to the company with effect from 10th November, 2016.
Obijective

The key objective of the policy would be:

a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management;

b) To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

C) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board;

d) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board;

e) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management;

f) To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their
effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations;

0) To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage;

h) To devise a policy on Board diversity;

i) To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.
Scope and Applicability

The policy shall apply to

a) Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent);

b) Key Managerial person;
c) Senior management personnel.



Definitions

The following words shall have the meanings as provided in the policy, unless otherwise mentioned in the
Act:

Board “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company as defined under the Act.

Directors Directors mean Directors of the company.
Policy “Policy or this Policy” means Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of this company.

Senior Management: As per explanation to Section 178, Senior Management means personnel of the
company who are members of its core management team excluding the Board of Directors comprising all
members of management one level below the executive directors, including functional Heads.

Key managerial personnel (KMP) Key managerial personnel means whole-time key managerial
personnel of the Company appointed under section 203 of the Act, which include:

(i) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time
director;

(ii) Company Secretary;

(iii) Chief Financial Officer; and

(iv)Such other officer as may be prescribed.

Remuneration: Remuneration means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for
services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Independent Director means an independent director referred to in sub-section (5) of section 149.

Employees’ stock option means the option given to the directors, officers or employees of a
company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such
directors, officers or employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the
company at a future date at a pre-determined price.

Words and expressions used and not defined in the Policy shall have the same meanings as assigned to
them in the Act.
Interpretation

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in the
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time.

Guiding Principles

The Policy ensures that

. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks and

. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.



Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consist of three or more non-executive directors, out
of which at least one-half shall be independent director(s), provided that chairperson of the Company may
be appointed as a member of this Committee but shall not chair such Committee. In the absence of the
Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as
Chairman. Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee could be present at the Annual
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

Frequency of Meetings

The meeting of the committee shall be held at such intervals as may be required.

Minutes of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the
Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the
subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

Committee Members’ Interests

. A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

. The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.

Voting

. Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes
of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the
Committee.

. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

Duties of the Committee

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

. Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior
Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

. Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

. Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;

. Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board,;

. Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the
plan;

. Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the
Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

. Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in

office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive
Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;



. Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary ofthe Committee;
. Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and
. Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

. Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also
bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members
of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate;

. Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of
the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company;

. Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;

. Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

Policy for Appointment /Resignation /Retirement /Succession of Director /[KMP /Senior Management
personnel

Appointment

a) The committee shall define the qualification/experience and expertise of the person for
appointment as Director/KMP/Senior management personnel,

b) The committee shall also take into consideration the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies
Act 2013 relating to disqualifications for the appointment of directors;

c) Appointment of Independent Directors is subject compliance of provisions of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule 1V and rules thereunder;

d) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience

of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his / her appointment;

e) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she
is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position;

f) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time
Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a
special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the
justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

Term/Tenure

a) Term for Managing Director/Whole time Director

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or
Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier

than one year before the expiry of term.

b) Term for Independent Director



i) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and
disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

ii) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5
years each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of
ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the
said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either
directly or indirectly.

iii) At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director
and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time
Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

The Committee shall evaluate the performance of Directors taking into account the various parameters
such as:

. Attendance at Board Meeting
. Participation in discussion
. Contribution in decision making,

While evaluation is being done, the Director who has been evaluated shall not participate in the
discussion. The recommendations of the Committee will be sent to the Board for its review.

Retirement

The Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to
retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise
even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Removal

The Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of Director,
KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder
and all other applicable Acts, Rules and Regulations, if any.

Policy on Executive Succession Plan

1. A change in executive leadership is inevitable for all organizations and can be a very challenging
time. Therefore, it is the policy of Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited (hereinafter to be referred to
as “the Company”) to be prepared for an eventual / permanent change in leadership, either planned or
unplanned, to ensure the stability and accountability of the organization until such time as new permanent
leadership is identified.



2. This policy covers the guideline for identification and development of future leaders from the
pool of internal talents working within the Company or Group.

3. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for implementing this policy and its related
procedures. It is also the policy of the Board to assess the permanent leadership needs of the organization
and to ensure the selection of a qualified and capable leader who is representative of the community; a
good fit for the organization’s mission, vision, values, goals, and objectives; and who has the necessary
skills for the organization.

4, To ensure that the organization’s operations are not interrupted while the Board of Directors
assesses the leadership needs and recruit a permanent executive officer, the Board will appoint interim
executive leadership, in accordance with the policy described below.

5. The Interim Chief Executive Officer (‘CEQ’) director shall ensure that the organization continues
to operate without disruption and that all organizational commitments previously made are adequately
executed, including but not limited to, loans approved, reports due, contracts, licenses, certifications,
memberships, obligations to lenders or investors of the Company, and others.

6. It is also the policy of the Company, to develop a diverse pool of candidates and consider at least
such number of finalist candidates for its permanent CEO position as may be determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

7. The Company shall implement an external recruitment and selection process, while at the same
time encouraging the professional development and advancement of current employees. The interim CEO
and any other interested internal candidates are encouraged to submit their qualifications for review and
consideration by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee according to the guidelines established
for the search and recruitment process.

Procedures for succession:

1. For a temporary change in executive leadership (i.e., illness or leave of absence) the immediate
junior officer, reporting to such executive, shall take charge of his senior till he joins the office or if he is
not competent then such other person who is competent to take the charge as may be decided by the
Managing Director.

2. In the event the Managing / Executive Director of the Company is no longer able to serve in this
position (i.e., leaves the position permanently), the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board of Directors shall fill the vacancy for the time being, in the following manner:

a. Within 30 business days (if appointed from within the Organisation) or 120 business days (if
appointed from outside the organisation), appoint an interim CEO according to the following line of
succession:

. Senior Executive Director / Executive Director of the Company;

. President / Vice president of the Company.

(Note:- In case there is more than one candidate eligible for the interim CEO, then Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall select one candidate based on his experience and expertise after
consulting the Chairman of the Board and Audit Committee.)



b. Within 30 days business days, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall take the
responsibility and implement the following preliminary transition plan:

. Communicate with key stakeholders regarding appointment of interim CEO,;

. Establish a time frame and plan for the recruitment and selection process in consultation with the
recruitment agency from among the existing pool of talent or from outside, depending upon the
requirement of the Company.

C. The Board may authorize the Managing / Executive Director for framing an internal policy for
identifying and developing internal pool of talent for future leadership role in different department(s) /
division in accordance with the requirement of such department(s) / division.

d. The Board shall review the succession policy periodically and if required, will make suitable
changes in the policy keeping in view to the regulatory changes or changes due to business environment.

Policy for Remuneration of Director/KMP/Senior Management personnel
Remuneration for Executive and Whole time Directors

The remuneration payable to the whole time directors shall be determined by the company as per the
Articles of the company and the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder. The remuneration so
determined shall be proposed to the board for approval and shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders/central government as applicable, wherever required.

Increments to the remuneration shall be recommended by the committee to the board which shall be well
within the slabs as approved by the shareholders for the whole time director.

Remuneration for Non-Executive and Independent Directors

The remuneration to Non-Executive independent directors shall be as per the provisions of the Companies
Act 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act,
2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force.

Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive Directors:

Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors will be decided by the Board, it can be on the
basis of:

O Contribution during the Meeting.

O Active Participation in strategic decision making.

Heads under which payments can be made

Any fee/remuneration payable to the Non- Executive Directors of the Company shall be in following
manner:

Sitting Fee

Non- Executive Director(s) may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board
or Committee thereof or any other meeting as required by Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable law or
for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board.

Remuneration and Commission



Under the Companies Act, 2013, Section 197 allows a company to pay remuneration to its Non-
Executive Director(s) either by way of a monthly payment or at a specified percentage of the net profits of
the company.

The Company is however not obligated to remunerate its Non- Executive Director(s).
Further, the section 197 of the Act provides that the remuneration payable to directors who are neither
managing directors nor whole time directors, shall not exceed-

(i) one percent of the net profits of the Company, if there is a managing or whole time director or
manager,
(i) three percent of the net profits in any other case.

Additional commission, apart from remuneration referred above, may be paid to Non-Executive Directors
as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the company from time to time, depending on the extra
time and effort as may be devoted and contribution as may be made by the Non-Executive Directors.

Refund of excess remuneration paid

If any such director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of fee/remuneration any such sums in
excess of the limit as prescribed or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where it is
required, he shall refund such sum to the company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the
company. The company shall not waive the recovery of any sum refundable to it unless permitted by the
Central Government.

Reimbursement of actual expenses incurred

Non- Executive Director(s) may also be paid/reimbursed such sums either as fixed allowance and /or
actual as fair compensation for travel, boarding and lodging and incidental and /or actual out of pocket
expenses incurred by such Directors for attending Board/Committee Meetings.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entrusted with the role of reviewing the compensation
of Non- Executive Director(s).

Payment to Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors

The Company has no stock options plans and no payment by way of bonus, pension, incentives etc to its
Non- Executives.

The Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option and may receive remuneration only by
way of fees and reimbursement of expenses for participation in meetings of the Board or Committee
thereof.

Remuneration to Key management personnel and Senior Management personnel

The remuneration of the Key management personnel and senior management personnel shall be decided
by the Human resource team of the company and shall be presented to the committee for its perusal and
approval.

Disclosures

Significant disclosures are required in the Directors report relating to the Remuneration of the
Directors/Independent Directors/Key management personnel and the senior management personnel.

Conclusion

The committee shall have authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements of this policy.



In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Policy and provisions of the Act and Rules
framed thereunder or any other applicable laws for the time being in force, the later shall prevail over the
Policy.

This Policy or the relevant provisions of this policy shall be disseminated to all concerned employees of
the Company and shall also be uploaded on the website of the Company.

The policy shall be amended as required from time to time in case of any changes in the Act and the rules
made thereunder.



FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED
'KNR HOUSE’ 4" Floor, Plot No. 114,

Phase I, Kavuri Hills, Jubilee Hills,

Hyderabad 500033.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report
that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31%
March, 2023 (*Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited (the “Company”) for the financial year ended on
31t March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Overseas Direct Investment.

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015. (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)



(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009. (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998
(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with stock exchange and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except as follows:

1. During the year under review the Company has made delay in filing of Statement of Investor
Complaints for the quarter ended 31% March 2022 under SEBI (LODR) 2015, The BSE Limited
has fined the Company for INR 16,520/-

2. During the year under review The Company has made delay in filling of Compliance under
Regulation 57(4) and 57(5) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, and BSE Limited has fined INR
23,600/~ for Non-compliance of the said Regulations for the quarter ended March 2022.

3. During the year under review The Company has made delay in intimation of record date for
making payment of Interest in its Debentures for the year ended 31% March 2022 the BSE
Limited has fined the Company for INR 1,41,600/-

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

As confirmed by the Management adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings and agenda items were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously or
majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the



Board, as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

For M S Pitroda & Co.,
Practising Company Secretary

Mehul Pitroda

Proprietor

ACS No. 43364

CP No. 20308

UDIN: A043364E000757792

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7"" August 2023

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.



To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,

PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED
'KNR HOUSE’ 4" Floor, Plot No. 114,

Phase I, Kavuri Hills, Jubilee Hills,

Hyderabad 500033.

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that
the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For M S Pitroda & Co.,
Practising Company Secretary

Mehul Pitroda

Proprietor

ACS No. 43364

CP No. 20308

UDIN: A043364E000757792

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7" August 2023



PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

ANNEXURE Il
FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis.
SL. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
C) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ transaction
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or | NIL
arrangements or transactions’
f) Date of approval by the Board
Q) Amount paid as advances, if any
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. | Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship

b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/
transaction

c) Duration of the contracts/ | NIL
arrangements/transaction

d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including the
value, if any

e) Date of approval by the Board

f) Amount paid as advances, if any

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad K Narsimha Reddy Rahul Agarwal
Date: 08.08.2023 Director Director

DIN: 00382412 DIN: 08407819



PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

Annexure 1V

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

1. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
The main objective of the CSR policy of the Company is to operate business in a sustainable manner respecting the environment and society at large. It also aims to
take up directly or indirectly, programs that would benefit the communities in and around the work places which will enhance the quality of life and economic well-
being of the local residents.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

S.No Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of meetings of
meetings of CSR Committee

CSR Committeejattended during the
held during the |year

Nature of Directorship

year
1. Mr. B S Reddy Non-Executive Director 2 2
2. Mrs. D Venkata Padma Non-Executive Independent Director 2 2
3. Mrs. B S Radhika Non-Executive Independent Director 2 2

3. Web link of Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are disclosed:

http://knrcl.com/pkhil-board-of-directors-and-committees.html

http://knrcl.com/pkhil.html

4. Details of Impact Assessment: Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of Sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set-off for the financial year:

SI. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-

from preceding financial | off for the financial year, if

years (in Rs) any (in Rs)



http://knrcl.com/pkhil-board-of-directors-and-committees.html
http://knrcl.com/pkhil.html

PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

| 1

|NA

|NA

|NA

6. Average Net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013: Rs. 21,01,58,998/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 42,03,178/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR Obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 42,03,178/-

8. (a) CSR Amount Spent or unspent for the financial year.

Total AmountSpent for the
Financial Year.

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR
Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified underSchedule VII as per second
proviso to section 135(5).

(inRs.)
Name of the
Amount. Date of transfer. Fund Amount. Date of transfer.
Rs. 42,30,484/- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Details of CSR Amount spent against Ongoing projects for the financial year:
(@) @ @) (4) () (6) O] ) 9) (10) (11)
SLOT Name of  the Item from the list | Local Location of theproject Project Amount Amount spent | Amount Mode of | Mode of Implementation
No. Project. of activities in | area duration | allocated for | in the current | transferred Implemen | —Through Implementing
Schedule VII to | (Yes/No). the project financial Year | to tation - | Agency
the Act. (in Rs.). (inRs.). Unspent CSR | Direct
Account for
the project as | (Yes/No
per  Section
135(6) (in]).
Rs.).




PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

CSR
State District Name Registration
number.
NIL
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year
) @) ® [ @ (5) (6) (7) ® ©) (10) (11)
Sl Name of  theProject. Item from | Local | Location of theproject Project Amount Amount spent | Amount Mode of | Mode of Implementation
No. the list of | area duration | allocated for | in the current | transferred Implemen | —Through Implementing
activities | (Yes/ the project financial Year | to tation - | Agency
in No). (in Rs.). (inRs.). Unspent CSR
Schedule Account for | Direct
VIl to the the project as
Act. per Section | (Yes/No
135(6) (in
Rs.). ).
CSR
State District Name Registration
number.
1. | “onstruction ot road X No Telangana  |Warangal N.A Nil Rs. 42,03,178/-  Nil Yes N.A NA
2. | spnribution towards Il Yes Telangana  |Warangal N.A Nil Rs. 65,000/- Nil Yes N.A N.A
Total Rs. 42,30,484/-

(d) Amount spent in administrative overheads Nil

(e) Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable — Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent in the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e) — Rs.42,30,484 /-
(9) Excess amount for set off, if any

SI. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
section 135(5)

Rs. 42,03,178/-




PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 42,30,484/-

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs.27,306/-

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Rs. 45,395/-
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years Rs.72,701/-
[(iii)-(iv)]

9) (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SI. | Preceding Amount Amount spent in Amount transferred to any fund specified under | Amount
No. | Financial transferred to the reporting Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any. remaining to
Year. Unspent CSR Financial Year (in be spent in
Account under Rs.). rm ry - succeeding
section 135 (6) (in I;lan:je of the Rmount (in financial
Rs.) un )- Date of years. (in Rs.)
transfer.
1. |2021-22 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. [2020-21 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. [2019-20 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
TOTAL Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(b) Details of CSR Amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial years:

1) @ ®3) (4) () (6) O (8 ©)




PATEL KNR HEAVY INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

SI.

No.

Project ID.

Name of the Project.

Financial
in  which
project
commenced.

Year [Project

the |duration.
was

Total amount
allocated for
the project (in
Rs.).

Amount spent
on the

project in the
reporting
Financial Year
(in Rs).

Cumulative
amount
spent  at
the end of
reporting
Financial
Year. (in
Rs.)

Status of the
project-
Completed
/Ongoing.

NIL

1.

2.

Sd/-

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR Spent in the financial year

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Nil

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset:  Nil
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name: Nil

such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete: Nil
address and location of the capital asset).

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5). — N.A

K Narsimha Reddy
Director
(DIN:00382412)

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 08.

08.2023

Sd/-
Rahul Agarwal
Director

(DIN: 08407819)




M.K. DANDEKER & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Phone : +91- 44 - 43514233 No.185 {(Old No.100) 2nd Floor,
E-mail : admin@mkdandeker.com Poonamaliee High Road, Kilpauk,
Web : www.mkdandeker.com Chennai - 600 010.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of M/s. PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended on that date.

fn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143({10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have nothing to report in this regard.

#185, (Cid No.100),
20d FLOOR,
POCHAIALLEE HIGH ROSS,
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M.K. DANDEKER & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Therecn

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board report and other reports are expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are respansible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

Page 2 of 11




M.K. DANDEKER & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to the events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i}
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of more significance in the audit of the ind AS financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Page3o0f 11
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M.K. DANDEKER & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far us
it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the
Company to its Directors during the year so the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according 1o the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

3 #1835, (Clg No, 1003,
20d FLOOR,
POONAMALLERCHGHBAD,
HILPARES '
CHENMAI - 600 010,
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M.K. DANDEKER & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

iv.

V.

UDIN:

Date:
Place:

{a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities {(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c} Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For M.K. Dandeker & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
{ICAI Regn. Np. 0006795/5000103)

23223754BGVSTUS634
S. Poosaidurai
May 11, 2023 Partner
Hyderabad Membership No. 223754

R
Kira H ROAD,

CHENNAL - 600 019,
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in our Report of even date)

1 {a) {A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{B) The Company is not having any intangible assets in its books of accounts as per IND AS
financial statements.

(b} These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The Company is not having any immovable property.
(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

2 (a) The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development and maintenance
and hence clause 3 (ii}{{a) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 relating to
inventory is not applicable.

(b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at
any point of time of the year and hence clause 3 (ii)(b} of the Companies {Auditor’s Report)
Order 2020 is not applicable.

3 During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

4, The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and securities, which attracts provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Hence, the clause 3(iv} of the Companies {Auditor’s Report) order 2020 is not applicable to the
Company.

5 The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits and hence
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder are not
applicable to the Company.

6 The Company is maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section {1} of section 148 of the Companies Act in respect of services carried out by the
Company.

% # 185, {006 Mo, 100),
2ad FLOOR,
POOHAMALLEE HIGH ROAD,
HKILGAY,
CHENNALS
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7

9 (a)

(b)

(d)

()

a. The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to
the appropriate authorities though there has been a delay in remittance of tax deducted as
source in three instances and GSTR-3B in two instance.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no statutory dues
pending in respect of income tax, GST, customs duty, cess and any other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating
to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961).

As on the last day of the Financial year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any new Term loans during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
funds on short term basis during the year and hence clause 3 {ix}(d) of the Companies
{Auditor’s Report} Order 2020 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures and hence clause 3 {ix}{e) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order 2020 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies and hence clause 3 (ix){f) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 is not
applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including Debt instruments) during
the year and hence clause 3 (x}{a) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 is not
applicable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures {fully, partially or optionally} during the year and
hence clause 3 (x){b) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.
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(a) Based on the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

{b) No report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT- 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{0 Based on the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle-blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause 3 (xii} of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditor for the year under audit, issued to
the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Hence, clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), {b) and {c) of the
Order is not applicable.

{b) in our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence clause 3
(xviii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

#185, {Ofd Na, 100},
" 2nd FLOOR,
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Ig,

UDIN:

Date:
Place:

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Companies Act
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx}(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b} The Company has no unspent amount pursuant to any ongoing project, under sub section
(5) of section 135 of the Companies Act. Hence clause 3 {xx)(b) of the Companies {Auditor’s
Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

As the Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures, clause 3 (xxi) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

For WM.K. Dandeker & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
{ICAl Regn. ,\lo. 0006795/5000103)

23223754BGVSTUS634 /’% " ,
S. PGosaidural

May 11, 2023 Partner
Hyderabad Membership No. 223754

#185, (0 No. 10p)
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PATEL KNR Heawy
Infrastructures Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”). These responsibilities include the design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Interna! Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

. Page 10 of 11
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in ali material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of [ndia.

For ML.K. Dandeker & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Regn. No. 0006795/S000103)

UDIN: 23223754BGVSTU5634
S. Poosaidurai
Date: May 11, 2023 Partner

Place: Hyderabhad Membership No. 223754

KILPAYK,

CHENNAI . gy 010,
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M.K. DANDEKER & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Phone: +91- 44 - 43514233 N0.185 (Old No, 100) 2nd Floor,
E-mail: admin@mkdandeker.com Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk,
Web: www.mkdandeker.com Chennai - 600 010.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Report on the audit of the financial results

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Results of Patel KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited (“the
Company”) for the quarter ended and year ended March 31, 2023, attached herewith, being submitted by the
Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2013, as amended (the “Listing Regulations”).

In our opinion and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Results:

(i) are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations in this
regard; and

{ii) gives a true and fair view in conformity with applicable Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with relevant rules issued thereunder
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the net profit and other
comprehensive income and other financial information of the Company for the quarter and year
ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
Financial Results” section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Results

These Financial Results have been prepared on the basis of the annual financial statements. The Company’s
Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Results that give a
true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the
Company, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in
compliance with Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Company are

responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

Branches: CHENNAI, BENGALURU, HYDERABAD, AHMEBRBAECEER &5

#185, (0ld No. 1293, PG

2nd F|
PGOMARA LOOR,




M.K., Dandeker & Co. LLP
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safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementaﬁon and maintenance of adequate internal financiat
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Results, the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Results as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Results, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Results ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify

%185, (Old No.100),
2nd FLOOR,
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our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Results, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Results represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For ML.K. Dandeker & Co.LLD
Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Reg. No.0006795 / S000103)

UDIN: 23223754BGVSTV7592

5. Poosaidurai
Date: May 11, 2023 Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership No. 223754
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.;_E‘.é\TEL KNﬁHeavy Infrastructures Ltd,
salance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)

- . Note As at As at
Particulars No. | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
I ASSETS
1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, plant and equipment 4 19.52 38.20
b} Financial Assets
i) Financial asset Receivables 5 19,692.32 24,929.93
if}  Other Financial Asset 10 - 227.78
¢) Other non-current assets 6 - 500.56
19,711.84 25,696.47
2) CURRENT ASSETS
a) Financiai assets
i) investments 7 7,783.60 6,249.39
i) Financial asset Receivables 5 £,597.64 6,037.54
i} Cash and cash equivalents 8 113.53 86.05
iv) Other Bank Balances 9 432.59 412.81
v)  Other Financial Asset 10 1,387.73 1,255.23
b) Current tax asset (net) 11 545.41 886.73
¢) Other current assets 12 34.19 33.55
i16,894.69 14,961.30
TOTAL ASSETS 36.606.53 40,657.77
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES \
EQUITY
a) Equity Share capital 13 2,382.38 2,382.38
b) Instrument entirely equity in nature 13.4 4,104.22 4,104.22
¢) Other equity 14 5,281.63 5,270.63
Total Equity 11,768.23 11,757.23
LIABILITIES
1) NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 15 17,590.00 22,697.66
iy Other financial liabilities 16 - 109.57
b} Other non-current liabilities 17 69.08 86.19
17,659.08 22,803.42
2) CURRENT LIABILITES
a} Financial liabilities
i) Barrowings 15 5,121.43 4,632.50
iy Trade Payables
Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises 18 - -
Due to other than Micro & Small Enterprises 18 60.47 56.50
iii) Other financial liabilities 16 50.66 16.22
b) Other current liabilities 19 683.84 39.08
c) Provisions 20 1,262,822 1,262.82
7:.179.22 6,007.12
Total Liabilities(1+2) 24,838.30 28,900.54
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 36,606.53 40,657.77

As per our report of even date attached
For M.K. Dandeker & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Reg. Ng. 0006795/5000103)

S. Poosaidurai /
Partner
Membership No: 223754

“" 4185, 104 No, 1001,
2nd FLOOR,

KILPAUK,
CHENNAI - 600 010,

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11-05-2023

POONAMALLEE HIGH ROAD,

Notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board

K.N Redds o
(Director) [f5( .. .-
DIN: 003824121

i CA .
. Valkuntanathan
Chief Financial Officer
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't}xRahui Agarwal
-~ {|Director)
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Mohit Agarwal
Company Secretary




'PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastroetures i

Statement of Profit And Loss For the Year Ended March 31, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Audited Audited
I Revenue from Operations 21 4,371.94 5,784.62
IT . Otherincome 22 387.73 1,955.02
III Total Revenue (I + i1 4,759.67 7,739.65
1v Expenses
Operating & Maintenance expenses 23 773.76 678.59
Employee benefits expenses 24 3.69 3.56
Finance costs 25 3,016.56 3,550.89
Depreciation 4 18.68 9.86
Other expenses 26 935.57 240.98
Total expenses (IV) 4,748.66 4,483.88
v Profit before exceptional items and tax (I1I - IV) 11.01 3,255.76
VI Exceptional items - -
VII Profit/{Loss) before tax (V- V1) 11.01 3,255.76
VIII Tax expense
1) Current tax 27 - -
2) Prior Period Tax 27 - -
3) MAT Credit 27 - -
43 Deferred tax - -
- 0.00
X Profit/(Loss) for the period {VII-VIII) 11.01 3,255.76
X Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gains and losses - -
XI, Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 11.01 3,255,76
XII Basic Earnings per equity share
1} Basic 0.05 13.67
2) Diluted 0.05 13.67

As per our report of aven date attached
For M.K, Dandeker & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Req. Npg. 0006795/5000103)

S. Poosaidurai
Partner
Membership No: 223754

%185, 101d No, 102,
2nd FLOOR,
POONAMALLEE HIGH ROAD,
KILPAUK,
CHENNA? <650 010,

Piaée: Hyderabad
Date: 11-05-2023

Notes refered to above form an integral part of the financlal statements

Y

e

e bl
aikuntanathan

Chief Financial Officer

e "o Rahul Agarwal
(Director)/‘_.-" e T
DIN: 00382412

For and on behalf of the Board

ca\A

- {DRirector)

DIN: 08407819

FF

Mohit Agarwal
Company Secretary
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[FATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Ltd.
cash Flow Statement for the Year ended March 3%, 2023

{Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

AY CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation
Interest Expenses
Derivative (Gain}/Loss on forelgn currency derivatives & IRS
Loss on sale of Asset
Provision for Periodic Maintanance
Unwinding Interest on Periodic maintenance Expense
Modification Gain or Loss
Net Gain/(Loss) on FV of Mutual Fund Units
Unamoritzed Processing Fee-Expenses
Interest Income
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Taxes (paid) /Refund
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Sale of Fixed Assets
Investments in FDR
Net Proceeds/(Realisation} From Current Investments
Interest Received
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

11.01 3,255.76
18.68 9.86
2,507.51 3,454.12
T {11.13) (218.37)
- 0.86
175.44 {1,338.22}
{252.19) (267.93)
13.77 13.77
{21.98} {14.23)
2,84%1.1%1 4,895.62
5,097.28 3,135.73
567.60 (1,703.16)
8,505.99 6,328.19
341.32 (176.03)

8,847.31

{1,282.02)
2.20

6,152.16

(28.68)
1.50

(412.81)
1,742.77
14.23

{1,279.82)

1,317.01

Long Term Funds Borrowed/(Repaid} (4,632.50) (4,153.75)
Interest Paid (2,907.51) (3,464.74)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (7,540.01) (7,618.49)
Net change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 27.48 (149.32)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at April 01, 2022 (Opening Balance) 86.05 235.37
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March 31, 2023 (Closing Balance) 113.53 86.05
Notes:
1 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Bank Balance - Current Account 113.53 86.05
Cash in Hand - -
113.53 86.05

investing and financing activities.
3 Figures in brackets represent ¢ash outflows,

2 The Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the Ind-AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements and presents the cash flows by operating,

Notes refered to above form an integral part of the financlal statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M.K. Pandeker & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Reg. Nb. 0006795/5000103)

S. Poosaiduraf
Partner
Membership No: 223754

#185, (Old No. 103,
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CHENNAL . 620010,

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 11-05-2023

{Director)
DIN: 00382412

ikuntanathan

Rahul Agarwdl
(Director}
DIN: 08407819

Al

N

Mohit Agarwal
Company Secretary




PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Lid.
Statement Of Changes In Equity For the Year ended March 31, 2023

A - Equity Share Capitail

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars No. of Shares
in Lakhs Amount in Rs. Lakhs
As at April 01, 2021 238.24 2,382.38
Chanaes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the bedinning of the current reporting period - -
hanges in equity share ¢apital during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 238.24 2,382.38
As at April 01, 2022 238.24 2,382.38
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period - -
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
t___A'I: March 31, 2023 238.24 2,382.38
B - Instruments entirely equity in nature
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Opening as on April 1, 2021 4,104.22
Addition during the year R
Closing as on March 31, 2022 4,104.22
Opening as on April T, 2022 4,104,22
Addition during the period -
Closing as on March 31, 2023 4,104.22
C - Other Equity
(Rs, In Lakhs)
Debenture Retained
Redemption . Eérning Total
Particulars Reserve
Balance as at 1Ist, April, 2021 365.00 1,649.87 2,014.87
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 3,255.76 3,255.76
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 2,077.00 (2,077.00) -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,442.00 2,828.63 5,270.63
Balance as at 1st, April, 2022 2,442.00 2,828.63 5,270.63
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 11.01 11,01
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,442.00 2,839.63 5,281.63

As per our report of even date attached
For M.K. Dandeker & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

(ICAY Req. No. 0006795/5000103)

S. Poosaidurai
Partner

K.N
{Director)

#7185, (012 No. 1093,

Date: 11-05-2023 CHENNAT - £09 017

DIN: 00382412

: . anil FLOOR -3
Membership No: 223754 POONAMALL .
Place: Hyderabad K”_E,EJ:("GH ROAD, lmathan

For and on behalf of the Board

hief Financial Officer

Lot

Rahul Agarw.
(Director)
DIN: 08407819

r}/
Mohit"Aaarwal

Company Secretary
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1.

E.

Reporting entity

PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited (the ‘Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at KNR House, Phase I, Kavuri hills, Jubilee hills, Hyderabad, Telangana. The
Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as a Special Purpose
Vehicle ("SPV") promoted by KNR Constructions Limited ('KNRCL") and Patel Engineering
Infrastructures Ltd CPEL".

The Company has entered into a Service Concession Arrangement (“SCA") with National Highway
Authority of India ("NHMAI”) for the Design, Construction, Development, Finance, Operation, and
Maintenance of Isiam Nagar (KM 230.00) to Kadtal (KM 278.00) of Nagpur -Hyderabad Section on NH-
7 in the State of Telangana, Under North-South Corridor (NHDP Phase -II) on BOT (Annuity)} basis -
Project Reference Number NS-2 /BOT/AP-07. The company achieved Provisional COD with effect from
11th June 2010.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise
indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Current Assets and Current Liabilities

Current Assets:

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

{a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal
operating cycle;

(b} It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

(c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

(d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets shall be classified as non-current.

Current Liabilities:

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date: or

(d) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity mstruments do not af'fect Ets cIaSS|f|catlon
All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.
Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets, liabilities (including
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“"PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

contingent liabilities), income and expenses. The Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actual resuits and the estimates are recognized in the
periods in which the results are known / materialize. Estimates include the useful lives of property plant
and equipment and intangible fixed assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in
respect of retirement benefit plans, provisions for resurfacing obligations, fair value measurement etc.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then
the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in
which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation technigues as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement,

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Significant accounting policies

. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it Is |ocated.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its

intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.
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"PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss.

il. Subseqguent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment in the manner and as
per the useful life prescribed under Schedule-II to the Act under the WDV method and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a
pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and eqmpment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

b. Rights under Service Concession Arrangementis {Annuity Project)

i)

Financial Asset under SCA

Where Company has acquired contractual rights to receive specified determinable amounts,
such rights are recognised and classified as “Financial Assets”, even though payments are
contingent on Company ensuring that the infrastructure meets the specified quality or
efficiency requirements. Such financial assets are classified as "Receivables against Service
Concession Arrangements”.

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scope per Concession agreement (normally
referred as "Change of Scope")} is recognised and classified as “Financial Assets” as and when
incurred.

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses that are
directly attributable to the development or acquisition of right under service Concession
Arrangements are allocated and recognised and classified as “Financial Assets".

¢. Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair

value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition of financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Non-Derivative Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
— amortized cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

— FVOCI - equity investment; or

- FVTPL
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"PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the assetl is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.~ )

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

—the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measuraed at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it'is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, inciuding any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition
is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. De-recognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. .

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on
the modifled terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the

financial Hability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.
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"PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount 'presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
lability simultaneocusly.

v. Non-derivative financial assets - service concession arrangements

The Company recognises a financial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it
has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the
direction of the grantor of the concession for the construction or upgrade services provided. Such
financial assets are measured at fair value upon initial recognition and classified as trade
receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost.

d. Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) mode! for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure;

« Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.q., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance,
= Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables which do not contain a significant financing component. The application of simplified
approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recoghition.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject

to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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"PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis,

e. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in Balance Sheet.

f. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under
short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably.

g. Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recoghised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has.a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

h. Revenue recognition

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” with the date of
initial application being April 1, 2018. Ind AS 115, revenue from contracts with customers, mandatory
for reporting period beginning on or after April 1, 2018 replaced existing revenue recognition
requirements i.e. Ind AS 18 Revenue Recognition and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. There were
no significant adjustments required to the retained earnings as on April 1, 2018.

Accordingly, the policy for Revenue is amended as under:

To recognize revenue, the Company applies the following five step approach:

(1) Identify the contract with a customer

(2) Identify the performance obligations in the contract

(3) Determine the transaction price

(4) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract, and
{5) Recognize revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.,

The Company recognize revenue when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
a promised service (i.e. an asset) to NHAIL
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"PATEL KNR Heavy Infrasiructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Under the terms of contractual arrangements, the Company acts as a service provider. The Company
constructs or upgrades infrastructure {construction or upgrade services) used to provide a public
service and operates and maintains that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of
time. The Company shall recegnise and measure revenue for the services it performs. The nature of
the consideration determines its subsequent accounting treatment i.e. As financial assets. The
Company will recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to
recefve cash or another financial asset from the NHAI for the construction services.

The Financial Asset due from the NHAI is accounted and measured at amortised cost. The Interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. As per the Concession
Arrangement, concession suppoit received are accounted for as part of the transaction price.

Other Income
Interest income is accrued at applicable interest rate on time proportion basis.
Dividend incorne is accounted when the right to receive the same is established.

Other items of income are accounted for as and when the right to receive arises.

i. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND DERIVATIVES
Foreign Currency transaction and transiation expenditure

At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate or at
amount likely to be realized from or required to disburse. Exchange differences that arise on
settlement of Long Term monetary items or on reporting at each Balance sheet date, of Long Term
Monetary items at the closing rate are charged to Profit and loss account.

Forward Exchange Contract/Derivative accounting

Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit & loss in the
reporting period in which the exchange rates changes.

The Derivatives are recognised at Fair value and the respective Income/ (Expenditure} has been
charged to Profit & Loss Account.

a) The functional reporting currency of the Company is Indian Rupee,

b) Foreign Currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the reporting
currency, using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

¢} At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the
closing rate or at amount likely to be realized from or required to disburse. Exchange
differences, that arise on settlement of Long Term monetary items or on reporting at
each Balance sheet date, of Long Term Monetary items at the closing rate or realizable
rate are adjusted in carrying value of the reiated fixed assets whereas for short term
monetary ltems the same is recognized as income or expense.

d) Forward Exchange Contract: Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in
the statement of profit & loss in the reporting period in which the exchange rates
changes. Any profit or loss arising on the cancellation of such forward contract is
recognized as income or expense for the period.

e) Under Ind AS, foreign exchange forward contracts are mark-to-market as at Balance
Sheet date and unrealized net gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss statement.
Derlvative assets and derivative liabilities are presented on gross basis.
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

i

Recognition of interest income or expense
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset or to the amortised cost of the liability.

Income tax

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used, The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be avallable. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there Is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available.against which such
deferred tax asset can he realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or recognised, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized, or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax Habilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
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Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

.Segment reporting

The Board of Directors assess the financial performance of the Company and make strategic decisions
and has been identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM). Based on the internal
reporting provided to the CODM, the Company has only one reportable segment i.e, the BOT road
project and hence no separate disclosures are required under Ind AS 108,

. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share ("EPS") for the year is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax
for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

— the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

— the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless
the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets have to be recognised in the financial statements in the period in which if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. Contingent assets are assessed
continually, and no such benefits were found for the current financial year.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the company are
segregated.




PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

4 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Tangible Assets

Particulars

Office

Buildings* Vehicles - Total
Equipment

Cost
As at April 1, 2022 28.78 28.68 0.29 57.75
Additions - - - -
Disposals/Adiustments - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 28.78 28.68 0.29 57.75
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2022 12.41 6.85 0.29 19.55
Charge for the period 11.85 6.83 - 18.68
Disposals/Adjustments - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 24.26 13.68 0.29 38.23
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 4.52 15.00 0.00 19.52
As at March 31, 2022 16.37 21.83 0.00 28.20
* The flat is mortgaged to Debenture Trustee

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Tangible Assets '
Particulars Buildings* Vehicles O.fflce Total
; Equipment

Cost
As at April 1, 2021 28.78 14.16 0.29 43,23
Additions - 28.68 - 28.68
Disposals/Adiustments - (14.16) = (14.16)
As at March 31, 2022 28.78 28.68 0.29 57.75
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2021 10.07 11.16 0.27 21.50
Charge for the period 2.34 7.50 0.02 9.86
Disposals/Adiustments - (11.81) - {11.81)
As at March 31, 2022 12.41 6.85 0.29 19.55
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 16,37 21.84 0.00 38.20
As at March 31, 2021 18.71 3.00 0.02 25.99
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the Year

5 - FINANCIAL ASSET RECEIVABLE

ended March 31, 2023

{Rs. In Lakhs}

PARTICULARS

As at
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

NON ~ CURRENT
Financlal Asset Receivable

15,692.32 24 929.93

148,692.32 24,929.93
CURRENT
Financial Asset Recelvable 6,597.64 6,037.54
Total Current Receivables 6,597.64 6,032.54
Fotal 26,289.96 30,967,47
6 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
GST Input credit - 500.56
Total - 500.56 _ |
7 - INVESTMENTS
(Rs, In Lakhs)
As at
PARTICULARS No.of Units March 31, 2023 No.ofUnits  March 31, 2022
CURRENT
Investment in Mutua! Funds{Quoted)
-L&T Resurgent India Corporate Bond Fund - - 46,32,881 766.13
-ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Growth 80,62,606 2,013.41 - -
-L&T Shart Term Bond Fund - Reautar - Growth - - 2,53,14,565 5,483.26
-HSBC Corporate Band Fund - Reaular Growth 69,66,822 4,287.60 -
-HSBC Short Duratlen Fund - Reaular Growth 59,298,471 1,328.66
-ICICI Pru Savings Fund - Growth 33,647 153.93
Total Current Investments 2,09,92,547 7,783.60 2,59,47,446 6,249.29
Total 2.783.60 £.249.39

Note:

B - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company has recognised the nvestments at Fair Value(Market Value}, along with the no.of units as on that date.

{Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

NON CURRENT

AsS at
PARTICULARS Masch 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Balances with banks:
in current accounts 113.53 86.05
Total 11353 §6.05
9 -~ Other Bank Balances
i {Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Fixed deposits 432.59 412.81
Total 432.59 412.81
10 - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at

N

Derivative Asset on Forex {Refer Note No : 37) - 227.78
- 222.78
CURRENT
From related party
Amounts Recoveralle frorm Patel Englneering Ltd{Refer Note:35} 912.93 912.93
Amouat withheld - NHAL 297.01 297.01
Amaount Recoverable from NHAI 42.62 42.62
Derivative Asset on Forex (Refer Note No : 37) 132.50 -
Qther advances 2.67 2.67
Total Current Financial Asset 1,382.73 . 1,255.23
Total 1.387.73 1,483.01
11 - CURRENT TAX ASSET(Net)
(Rs. In Lakhs}
As at
PARTICULARS Farch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
TDS Receivable 545.18 886.50
TCS Receivable 0,23 0.23
Total 545.41 886.73
12- OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at
FNEKED B March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
o D———3 70
Prepald Expenses <> 4185101 Ko, 103, % 34,19 33.55
2nd FLOOR,
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Lid,
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

13 - EQUITY CAPITAL
{Rs. In Lakhs)

As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share capital
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/~ each 3,000.00 3,000.00
Issued, subscribed & fully paid share capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,382.38 2,382.38
Total 2,382.38 2,382.35
13,1 Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any proposed, by the board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after
distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders
13.2 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year is set out below
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars No. of - Amount in
St Amount in Lakhs No. of Shares Lakt
Number of Eguity Shares at the beginning 238.24 2.382.38 238.24 2,382.38
Add: - Number of Shares Issued - - - -
Less: Number of Shares Brought Back - - - -
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 238.24 2,382.38 238.24 2,382.38

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 is set
March 31, 2023

out below:
March 31, 2022

No. of P
Name of the shareholder Shares in o hetq| NO-of Sharesin % held
Lakhs I_.akhs .
Patel Engineering Infrastructures Ltd & its Nominees 100.06 42.00 100.06 42.00
KNR Constructions Ltd & its Nominees 95,30 40.00 95.30 40.00
Fornido Developers Ltd {earlier known as "ENPRO Ltd™) 42.88 18.00 42,88 18.00
’ 238.24 100.00 238.24 100.00

13.3 The shareholding pattern of promoters at the end of the year as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
% Change % Change
o,
Name of the shareholder No. of % Of Total during the No. of Shares % Of Total Shares] during the
Shares Shares
year yeol
fPatel Engineering Infrastructures Ltd & its Non 100.06 42,00 - 100.06 42,00 -
KNR Constructions Ltd & its Nominees 35,30 40.00 - 95.30 40.00 -
Fornido Developers Ltd {earfier known as “ENP, 42.88 18.00 - 42,88 18.00 -
238.24 100.00 - 238.24 100.00 -

13.4 - Instrument entirely equity in Nature
PARTICULARS

{Rs. In Lakhs}
As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loan from Promotor Companies 4,104.22 4,104.22
Balance at the end of the period 4,104.22 4,104.22

Foot Note ; Loans from KNR Constructions Limited, Patel Engineering Infrastructure Limited & Patel XNR JV are in the nature of Sub-debt were
recognised as a form of equity contribution from the respective, and the same is repayable at the option of the Company after satisfaction of senior Debt.

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the
period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date:

No shares have been issued by the Company for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the
reporting periods.

13.5

(Rs. In Lakhs)
14 - OTHER EQUITY

Red Del:‘entl:zre Retained Earning Total
Particulars edemption Reserve

IBalance as at 1st, April, 2021 365.00 1,648.87 2,014.87
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 3,255.76 3,255.76
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 2,077.00 (2,077.00} -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,442.00 2,828.63 5,270.63
Balance as at 1st, April, 2022 2,442.00 2,828.63 5,270.63
Totat Comprehensive Income for the Year - 11.01 11.01
Transfer fo Debenture Redemption Reserve - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,442,00 2,839.64 5,281.63
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

vl

vif

15 - BORROWINGS
X {Rs. In Lakhs}
S 2l
PARTICULARS March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial Liablities
NON - CURRENT
Secured loans
Debentures
Rated, Listed, Redeemable Non Convertible debentures . 17,590.00 21,800.00
From banks )
Fareign Cucrency Lozn = 897.66
Total non-current berrowlings 17,590.00 22,697.66
CURRENT
Secured [oans
Debentures
Rated, tisted, Redeemable Non Cenvertible debentures 4,210.00 2,620.00
From banks
Foreign Currency Loan 911,43 2.012.50
Current borrowings 5,121.43 4,632.50
Tatal 22,711.43 27,330.16
Foot Note |

Terms of Security

‘Terms of Repayment

A first parl passu charqge, save and except project assets.

By wav of mortaane over all Inmovable properties, both present and future.

By way of hypothecation over all tangible movable assets, including moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, 1ools and accesseries,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and ail other moveable assets, both present and future

Charge over all accounts including the DSRA, Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts,

By way of Hypothecation on all intangible assets of the company including but aot limited to the goodwill and undertaking both present and future.

Pladae of 100% of the share capital of the Company
Charge over /assianment of the riahts, titles, benefits, Interests, claims and demand of the Company In the project documents

Series A Serles B Serles C Series D Serles E Series F Total
Rupees in lakhs 18,000.00 2,326.00 920.00 1,630.00 3,150.00 13,9490.00 4.000.00
Coupon Rate 10.34% 9.80% 10.65% 10.05% 10.30% 10.65%
Redemptlon Scheduie

30-Sep-23 1,005.00 - - - - 1,100:00 2,105.00
31-Mar-24 1,005.00 - - - - 1,100.00 2,105.00
30-Sep-24 1,480.00 - - - > 1,305.00 2,785.00
31-Mar-25 1,480.00 - - - - 1,305.00 2,785.00
30-Sep-25 2,890.00 - - - - . - 1 2,890.00
31-Mar-26 - - - - - 3,040.00 3,040.00
30-Sep-26 - - - - - 3,045.00 3,045.00
31-Mar-27 - - D - - 3,045.00 3,045.00
Total 7,860,800 - - = = 13,940.00 21,300.00

Foot Note - 1f

the swap providers.

PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

| R4.82,21/Per USD

The Company has issued 40,000 Mon-Cenvertible Debentures of face value of Rs.1.00 lakh each amounting to Rs.40,000 lakhs on 3rd Sep-
2013.These Debentures were subsequently listed on 25th Sep, 2013 on BSE. The said debentures are redesmable half yearly with the redemption
starting from Sep-2013 and ending on March-2027. Interest due on debentures during the year have been paid fully without delay. The said funds|
fiave been utilized in repayment of rupee laan, repayment of prometer's unsecured loan, Issue expenses and malntenance of DSRA.

During the FY 2018-19 the Rating of the company has been downgraded by one notch e AAA (SO} to AA+H(SO), Hence the company Is paying an
additionz| interest on the outstanding NCD @0.30% p.a per each notch downgraded as per NCD Agreement.

Terms of Securlty

Mortgage /charge over the company’s Immgvable and movable properties (other than project assets but including ali receivables) both present and
future.

Charge/assignment of revenue recelvables {including annuity payments received frem NHAI}.

Charge over fassignment of the rights, titles and interests of the company In, to and In respeet of all project agreements (in accordance with
concession agreement).

Assignment of insurance policles, contractor guarantees, contractor performance bonds and liquidated damages.
Fledge of 100% share capital of the Company

Charge over ail bank accounts inciuding the Escrow account, all sub- accounts in refation thereto and the Debt Service Reserve account.

The aforesald charge will rank parl-passu with the mortgages and charges created/to be created In favor of participating institutions/banks including

Terms of Repayment
The Cempany had hedged the above facility te cover against fluctuation én forelgn currency and LIBOR to the satisfaction of the lendets through
USD/INR options up to 30th Sep 2023. Loan amount sepald upto 31st March 2016 was hedged at Rs.50.7850/Per USD and balances foan amaiint
repayable from 1st April 2016 to 30th Sep 2023 is hedged at Rs.70/Per USD. The Loan repayable after 31st March 2023 has been translated at
fiedged rate as on 31st March 2023 because the loan repaysble is hedged at Rs.70/ Per USD, Whereas the exchange rate as on 31.03.2023 Is

#1185, 1Qld Mo, 100),
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16 - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITES

Rs. In Lakhs

PARTICULARS

As al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

NON - CURRENT

Derivative Uability on Interest Rate Swap - 109.57 |
Total non-current other financial Habilitles - 109.57
CURRENT
Amount payable to Related Parties
- Patel Enaineerina Ltd 0.09 0.09
- KNR Constructions Limited 27.48 5.00
- Patel KNR Jv 0.67 0.36
Derivative Labllity an Interest Rate Swan (Refer Mote No @ 37) 3.16 -
Outstanding Expenses 19.26 10.78
Total current other financial liabllities 50.66 16.22
Total 50.66 125,80
17 - OTHER NON -~ CURRENT LIABILITIES
{Hs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at
Mat 1 2 March 31, 2022
Labour Cess Payable 69.08 86.19
'Ygg}’] 69.08 86.1%
18 - TRADE PAYABLES
- {Rs. In Lakhs}
As at
PARTICULARS
March 51, 2023 March 31, 2022
CURRENT
Bilis Payable -KNRCL 60,47 56,50
Tota! current trade pavables 6047 56,50
Total 60.47 56.50 |

below:

o) Prncipal amount remaining unpaid
b) Interest due theraon

181 Trade payable other than acceptances include certaln dues to Micre and Small Enterprises, under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Developmenk Act, 2006 that have been determined based on the information available with the company and the required disclosures are given

€

4

)

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyend the appeinted day during the year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay In making
paymeat (which have been pald but beyond the day during
the year} but without adding the Interest specified under
Micro, Small and Medium Eaterprises Development Act,
2006.

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
acgpunting year

Further interast remaiaing due and payable even in the
suceeeding years, untll such date when the interest duss as

above are actuaily pald o the
small enterprises

18.2: Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment
As at March 31,2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Cutstanding for IulluwlnT periods from dug date of payments

€55 than
Particulars year 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yr85. More than 3 years Total
Undisputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - W b
Undisputed duas of crediters other than micro enterprises and 60,47 - . - 60.47

Cisputed dues of micro enterprises and smalf enterprises -

Disputed dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises -

As at March 31 ,2022

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Gutstanding for following periods from dug date of payments
Tess than 1

Partlculars year 1-2 yis. 2-3 yrs. Hore than 3 years Total
Undisputed dues of micro enterptises and small enterprises - - - - -
Undisputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 56.50 - - - 56.50
Disputed cuas of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and - - - - -
19 « OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As a
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Labour Welfare Cess Payable 17.27 17,27
Statutary bues
DS 20.726 21.81
GST 645.81 -
Tg;aﬂt 683.84 39.08
20 - PROVISIONS . .
— {Rs. In Lakhs)
5 a
PARTICULARS March 31, 2023 Matrch 31, 2022
Provision for MMR. 1,262.82 1,262.82
Total 1,262.82 1@62.82
MNDEKER 575
- Co
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

21~ REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

{Rs. In Lakhs})

Year ended Year ended
LARS
PARTICU March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Finance Income on Annuity 3,645.97 4,052.19
Operation & maintenance Income 725.97 690.10
Major Maintenance Income - 1,042.33
Total 4,371.94 5,784.62
22 - OTHER INCOME
{Rs, In Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
PAR' R
TICULARS March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on ICICI FDR 21.98 14,23
Net Gain/(loss) on FV of Mutual Fund Units 49.05 180.51
Net Gain on sale of Mutual Fund Units 203.14 87.43
Interest on Income Tax Refund 7.15 -
Derivative gain on FV of Interest rate swaps 106.41 301.36
Derivative gain on FV of Forex options - -
COS Income - 33.27
Modification gain on Financial Asset - 1,338.22
Total 387.73 1,955.02
23 - OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

PARTICULARS

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Carriageway repairs & maintenances

756.39

- Routine Maintenance 660.83
COS Expenses 17.37 17.76
. Total 773.76 678.59
24 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(Rs. In Lakhs}
Year ended Year ended
RTICULA
PA RS March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, Wages and Other Benefits 3.69 3.56
Total 3.69 3.56
25 - FINANCE COSTS
{(Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Interest Expense on

Interest on Debentures 2,499.94 2,744.71
interest on ECB Loan 209,28 253.98

Other Borrowing Costs
Cther Financial Charges . 14.83 14.17
Hedging Expenses 197.23 455.03
Derivative loss on FV of Forex opticns 95.28 §3.00
Total 3,016.56 3,550.89
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26 - OTHER EXPENSES

{Rs. In Lakhs)

- Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Agency Fee 24.81 22.86
Rating fee 11.21 9,50
Consultancy Fee 5.08 5.03
Advertising & Business Promotion Expenses 0.95 0.56
Interest on Statutory Dues 0.88 0.01
Independent Engineer Fee 47.78 45,52
Listing Fee 1.21 2.23
CSR Expenses (Refer note:26.1) 42.30 14,90
Arbitrator Fee 17.71 17.66
Rates & Taxes 1.62 0.02
Insurance Premium £69.79 103.09
Interest on Income Tax 18.19 -
Audit Fee 6.63 5.28
Legal & Professional Charges 5.30 3.65
Modification loss on Financial Asset 175.44 -
Annual Custody fee 0.89 0.75
Repair and Maintenance 2.80 -
Loss on Sale of Asset - 0.86
GST Expenses 501.34 -
Other Expenses 1.04 9.06
Total 935.97 240.98

activities in schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Amount spent during the year on :

a) Gross amount required 1o be spent by the company during the year Rs. 42.03 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 14.44)

26.1 As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, a company, mecting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities.

A CSR commiliee Tias been formed by the company as per the act. The funds were primarily allocated to the corpus and utilized through out the year on these

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Vet to be —
In cash paid in In cash Yet to be paid in
cash cash
1. Construction/ acquisition of any assets 42.30 - - .
2. On Purposes other than (1) above - - 14,50 -

) #1835, (01d No. 1003,
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27,

PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Ltd.
Notes ta the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Capital management,

The Caémpany's pelicy is to maintain a strong capital base 5o as Lo safeguard fs abiilty to conlinue as a golng concern, so that it can tontinue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and for the future development of the Company. In arder to maintaln or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Company may adjust the ameunt of dividend payment, return on capital to

shareholders or Issue of new shares.

The Company's adjusted net debt to aquity ratio at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was as follows

{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2023] March 31, 2032
Total Debts 22,715.43 27,330.16
Less: cash and cash equivalents & Qther Bank Balances (546.12) (498.86}
Adjusted net debt 22,165.31 16,831.30
Total equity 1,768.23 11,757.23
Adfusted equity 11,768.23 11,757.23
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 1.88 2.28

Foot Note : Debt includes Loag Term Barrowings {Incluging Current Maturi

28. Financlal Instruments - Falr values and risk management

A. Accountina classifications and fair values

{e2y and Interest accrued thera on.

The foliowing table shews the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial Iabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

March 31, 2023 {Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Carrylng amount Falr Value
FVTRL Amortised Cost | TOW casrying Level1 | tevelz| tevei3 Totat
amount
flnancial Assets
Financial asset Recelvables - 26,289.95 26,289.96 - - ,26,289.96 26,285.96
Derivative Asset . - - - - - -
Investments 7,783.60 - 7,783.60 7,783.60 - - 7,783.60
Cash and cash equivalents & Cther Bank Balances - 546.12 546.12 - - . -
Otherfinancial Assets - 1,387,723 1,387.73 - - £,382.73 1,3872.73
7,783.60 28,223.82 36,007.41 7,783.60 - 27,677.70 35,461.29
Financial Llabilitles
Non-Convertible Debentures - 21,800.00 21,800.00 - - 21,800.0¢ 21,800.00
Secured bank loans - 91t.43 G11.43 - - 911.43 911.43
Derivative Liability - - - - . - -
Trade payables - 60.47 60.47 - - 60,47 60.47
Other financial liabilities - 50,66 50.66 - - £0.66 50.66
- 22,822.56 22,822.56 - - 22,822.56 22,822.56
1} The carrying amount of financial asset ard [tability is measured at amortized cost are considerad to be the same as thera fair values due to their short term nature.
i) The Carrying value of term lpans are at approximate fair value as the Instruments are at prevalling market rate
March 31, 2022 {Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Fair Value
FVTPL Amortised Cost Total carrying tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
amount
Financial Assets
Financial asset Receivables - 30,967.47 30,967.47 - - 30,967.47 30,967.47
Derivative Asset - 220,78 227.78 - - 2178 227.78
Investments 6,249.39 - 6,249.39 6,249.39 - - 6,249.39
Cash and cash equivalents & Other Bank Balances - 498.86 498.86 - - - -
Qther financial Assets - 1,255.23 1,255.23 - - ©1,285.23 1,255.23
6,249.39 32,949.34 39,198.73 6,249.39 - 32,450,48 38,699.87
Financlal lfabilities
Non-Cenvertible Debentures - 24,420.00 24,420.00 - - 24,420.00 24,420.00
Secured bank loans - 2,910.16 2,910.16 - - 2,910.16 2,910.16
Derivative Llability - 109.57 106,57 - - 109.57 109.57
Trade payables - 56.50 56.50 - . 56.50 56.50
Other finzncial liabilities - 16.22 16.22 - - 16.22 16,22
- 27,512.46 27,512.46 - - 27,512.46 27,512.46

1) The carrying amount of financial asset and liabitity Is measured at amortized cost are considered to be the same as there fair values due to their shert term nature.
it) The Carrying vatue of tarm loans are 2t approximate falr value as the instruments are at prevailing market rate

#185,1012 No 103
200 FLOOR,
PODN»‘A}.HLLEE HIGH ROAD

KILPAUK,




PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

29. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management ...{contd.)
Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
a) credit risk
b} liquidity risk
c) market risk
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, The Company, through its training and management

standards and pracedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles

and obligations.
The Company's Board oversees how management monitars compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and

reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board is assisted in its
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both reguiar and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the audit committee.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financlal instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers; loans and investments in debt securities.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Financial asset receivable

The Company has a financial asset receivable, which will be recovered on the fixed payments from the authority{NHAI) in the form of
annuity throughout the concession period. The Management believes that the credit risk is negligible since its main receivable is from the
grantor of the Concession which is Government authority.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settied by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilifes when they are due, under both normal and stressed cenditions, without incurring!
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Campany's reputation. The Company uses activity-based costing to cost its products and
services, which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing its cash return on investments,

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following tables detail the company®s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual rmaturity is based on the
eatliest date on which the company may be required to pay. ’ o .

March 31, 2023 {Rs. In Lakhs)
. Contractual Cashflows

Carrying Amount Upto 1 year 2 to 3 Years More than 3 years
Derivative Liability - - - -
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-Canvertible Debentures 21,800.00 4,210.00 11,500.00 6,090.00
Secured bank foans 911.43 911.43 - -
Trade payables 60.47 60.47 - -
Other financial liabilities 50.66 50.66 - -

22,822.56 5,232.56 11,500,000 6,090.00
March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Contractual Cashflows

Carrying Amount Upto 1 year 2to 3 Years More than 3 years
Derivative Liability 109,57 - 109.57 0.00
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-Convertible Debentures 24,420.00 2,620.00 9,780.00 12,020.00
Secured bank loans 2,910.16 2,012.50 897.66 -
Trade payables 56.50 56,50 - -
Other financial liabilities 16.22 16.22 - -

27,512.486 4,705.22 | - 10,787.23 : 12,020.01
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
The following table details the company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of
information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is
managed on a net asset and Jiability basis,
March 31, 2023 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Contractual Cashflows
Carrying Amount Upto 1 year - 2to 3 Years More than 3 years
Financial Assets
Financial asset Receivables 26,289.96 6,597.64 5,697.69 13,904.64
Derivative Asset - - - -
Investments 7,783.60 7,783.60 - -
Cash and Cash equivalents 546.12 546,12 - -
Other financial Assets 1,387.73 1,3872.73 - -
36,007.42 16,315.09 5,607.69 13,994.64
March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Contractual Cashflows
Carrying Amount Upto 1 year 2to 3 Years More than 3 years
Financial asset Receivables 30,967.47 6,037.54 11,116.91 13,813.02
Derivative Asset 227.78 - 227.78
Investments 6,249.39 6,249.39 - -
Cash and Cash equivalents 498.86 498.86 - -
Other financial Assets 1,255.23 1,255.23 - -
39,198.73 14,041.02 11.344.70 13,813.02

¢) Market risic

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the}
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return,

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rate.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk as it has borrowing and options to payable in foreign currency

The company's exposure to foreign currency rate risk due to borrowings is as follows:

(R, In Lokhs)
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Foreign currency Borrowings-Non Current i5 - 857.66
Foreign currency Borrowings - Current maturities 15 911,43 2,012.50
(USD. In Lalhs
[Foreign _currency Borrowings outstanding in USD i | 13.25] 42.00
Sensitivity analysis (Rs. In Lakhs)

Foreign Currency Rate Risk Analysis Impact on profit/ loss after tax

FY 2022-23 Fy 2021-22
Increase or decrease in foreign currency by Rs.1 27.63 58.32

Note : In case of Decrease in Foreign currency rate, Profit will increase and vice versa

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value of future cashflow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes'in market interest
rates,

The interest risk arises to the company mainly from long term borrowings with variable rates. The Company measures risk through
sensitivity analysis.

The Company is not exposed to Interest rate risk as it is not having any variable interest rate borrowings.
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

The company is exposed to price risk due to investments in mutual funds and classified as fair value through profit and loss.
The company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.

The company's risk management policy is to mitigate the risk by investments in diversified mutual funds.

The company's expostre to price risk due to investments in mutual fund is as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Investments in Mutuat Funds 7 7,783.60 6,249.39
Sensitivity analysis (Rs. In Lakhs)

Price Rate Risk Analysis Impact on profit/ loss after tax

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Increase or decrease in NAV by 2% 140.33 130,74

Note : In case of Decease in NAV, Profit will reduce and vice versa

Service concession arrangement

The Company has entered into a Service Concession Arrangement("SCA”) with National Highway Authority of India ("NHAL") for the Design,
Construction, Development, Finance, Operation, and Maintenance of Islam Nagar (KM 230.00) to Kadtal (KM 278.00) of Nagpur —Hyderabad
Section on NH-7 in the State of Telangana, Under North-South Corridor (NHDP Phase —II) on BOT (Annuity) basis - Project Reference
Number NS-2 /BOT/AP-07 for a period of Twenty {20} years from commencement date i.e. 02-Mar-2008 including construction period and
The company achieved PCOD with effect fram 11th June 2010 and final COD on 27th December 2016.

The Company has right to recelve an annuity payment of INR 8874.00 Lakhs from the grantor/authority. Accordingly, the Company has
recognised its financial asset. At the end of the concession period the toll road will become the property of the grantor and the Company will
have no further involvement in its operation or maintenance,
During the year, the Company has recorded revenue of Rs. 4,371.94 Lakhs, consisting of Rs. 3,645.97 Lakhs as a Income on financial asset,
Rs.725.97 Lakhs as a income on operation & maintenance.

The Cornpany has a financial asset receivable of Rs. 26,289.96 Lakhs as on March 31, 2023.
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-PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

31

Contingent Liability and Commitments and Contingent Assets

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
a) Contingent Liability
Arbitral award passed in the favour of SPV to be 8,908.73 8,908.73
passed on to EPC Contractor.
b) Contingent Assets
Arbitral award passed in the favour of SPV 8,908.73 8,908.73

Note: The Above Arbitration claims are excluding of interest @SBI PLR+2% p.a

32 Remuneration paid to the Statutory Auditors excluding Taxes
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Audit and Other Fees 2022-23 2021-22
Statutory Audit Fees 4.25 3.75
Tax Audit 0.50 0.50
Other Services 0.95 0.98
Out of Pocket Expenses - -
33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per Share(EPS)”
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021~-22
i. Profit {loss) attributable to equity
shareholders{basic) 11.01 3,255.76
it. Weighted average number of equity shares
(basic) 238.24 238.24
Basic EPS 0.05 13.67
i. Profit {loss) attributable to equity
shareholders(diluted) 11.01 3,255.76
if. Weighted average number of equity shares
(diluted) 238.24 238.24
Diluted EPS 0.05 13.67
34 Employee Benefits
Actuarial valuation for gratuity to the company is not applicable during the year because the
numbers of Employees are less than ten.So, the disclosure is pursuant the requirements of Ind
AS - 19 is not required.
35 Related Party Transactions:

List of related parties and nature of relationship

Nsc; Name of the related party Nature of relationship
1 KNR Constructions Limited Share Holder
2 PATEL Engineering & Infrastructure Limited Share Holder

3 Patel — KNR IV
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Fellow Associate Entity

4 Mr. B.S. Reddy Director

5 Mr. K.N. Reddy Director

6 Mr. Kavita Sanjiv Shirvaikar Director

7 Mr. Rahul Agarwal ‘Director

8 Ms. Venkata Padma Daruvuri Director

9 Ms. Radhika Bajentri Singanamala Director

10 S. Vaikuntanathan CFC

11 Mohit Agarwal Company Secretary
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructares Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Transactions during the year

{Rs. In Lakhs)

S. Name of the . March 31, | March 3%,
No. | related party Nature of transactions 2023 2022
KNR Operation & Maintenance Expenditure 756.39 660.83
Constructions Periodic Maintenance - 1,007.46
1 | Limited ; ,
Reimbursement of Expenditure 22.48 22.87
Mobilisation advance recovered - 122.70
2 Patel - KNR IV Sub Contract Expenses 17.37 17.76
Company
3 Secretary - Remuneration 3.60 3.54
KMP

Balances outstanding

(ks. In lakhs)

S. Name of the . March 31, | March 31,
No. | refated party Nature of transactions 2023 2022
Share Capital 952.95 952.95
KNR Instrument entirely equity in nature 1033.69 1033.69
1 Constructions Operation & maintenance expenses payable 59.85 55.87
Limited Major Maintenance payable ' '0.63 © 0.63
Reimbursement of Expenditure 27.48 5.00
Share Capital 1000.60 1000.60
PATEL - -
, | Engineering & Instrument entirely equity in nature* 1550.53 1550.53
Ffr?cStdrUCture Advance Recoverable® 912.93 912.93
imite
Reimbursement of Expenditure 0.09 0.09
Instrument entirely equity in nature 1520.00 1520.00
3 Patel - KNR JV
With-hold amount payable 0.67 0.36

*Confirmation not obtained
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"PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Foreign Currency Transactions:
{Rs. In Lakhs)

. No. Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Foreign exchange outgo(Principal + Expenses) 2,420.31 2,567.85

Expenditure in Foreign Currency

i Agency Fee 22.23 20.48
i) Interest payment 188.35 228,58
jii} Hedging premium Expense 197.23 455.03
Earnings in Foreign Currency Nil il

Foreign Exchange transaction, translation and Hedge accounting

The company has a foreign currency monetary loan with standard chartered bank, the principal
loan amount and interest is being hedged at Rs.70 till the end of the tenure of loan.

As per Ind-As the loan amount was being re-stated at fair value (at the closing rate) and the
gain or loss on foreign currency translation amount was accountéd through Profit and Loss.

Derivative Instruments — Foreign Exchange Forward contracts

Under Ind AS, foreign exchange forward contracts are mark-to-market as at each Balance Sheet
date and unrealized net gain or loss is recognized. Derivative assets and derivative liabilities are
presented on gross basis.

There are no Title Deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company.

The Company has no Loans or Advances in the nature of Loans to specified persons that are
Repayable on Demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

No proceedings have been Initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made
thereunder.

The Company has no Borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions on the basis of security of
only Current Assets. All the assets of the Company are pledged against the borrowings as
mentioned in the Note-15, And quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the
Company with Banks or Financial Institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender during the year.

The Company had no transactions with Companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year.

The Company has no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period during the year,
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2

of the Companies Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017 during
the year

During the year, the Company has no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent
Authority to be implemented in the books of accounts.

i 192.7 1014 No, 10,
ne! FLOOR,
POONMH;‘LLEH HIGH Raaty,

KILPAUK,
CHENNAL. 550 310,



PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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48
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50

51

During the year, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

During the year, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any transacticn not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961. )

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the
financial year.

Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility Activities:
There is no short fall under the category mentioned in subsection 1 of “Section 135 - Corporate

Soclal Responsibility” of the Companies Act, 2013 . For details relating to CSR expenses, Please
refer to point no.26.1.
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PATEL KNR Heavy Infrastructures Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

53 Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
There has been no claimed transaction during the period with MICRO, Small and Medium
Enterprises covered under the MICRO, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act.
{(MSMED Act, 2006) Hence, reporting details of principal and interest does not arise

54 Reconciliation between the Opening and Closing balances in the financial statement
for Liabilities and Financial Assets arising from Financial Activities {Ind AS - 7)

Instrument
. Long Term - - Interest
Particulars h entirely equit
Borrowings in Nats}(req Y Accrued
Opening Balance 27,330.16 4,104,222 -
Interest Accrued during the vear 2,921.28
Cash flows
Received
Repayment (4,632.50)
Interest paid {2,907.51)
Non Cash items
Foreign Exchange
Impact of EIR 13.77 {(13.77)
Closing Balance 22,711.43 4,104.22

55 Segment Information

The Company is into the business of developing the Infrastructure facility on BOT basis, and
there are no separate reportable operating segments hence no separate dlsclosures are required
under Ind AS 108.

56 Taxes on Income
The Company is eligible for deduction under section 80IA of Income Tax Act and the tax holiday
period of the company’s project falls within the concession period of the company as defined in
Section 80IA. Since deferred tax on Timing differences between Accounting Income and Taxable
Income that arise during the year is reversing during such tax holiday period, no deferred tax
asset/liability arises and accordingly no provision is made in the accounts.

57 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified/rearranged wherever considered
necessary.
For M.K. Dandeker & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
(ICAl Reg. No. 0006795/S000103)

S. Poosaidurai
Partner
M.No. 223754

%%%hul AgaréH

AL ;f“‘(Dlrector)
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Mohit Agarwal
(CS)
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